
MT. SAC AUXILIARY SERVICES CORPORATION 

FIRST QUARTERLY MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Thursday, September 3, 2020 

2:00 p.m. Zoom Meeting 

https://cccconfer.zoom.us/j/97382131788?pwd=UFgvMVR2Smd2TDlxVGpZQTdtcWtQdz09 

Password: 524999 

Please provide any public comment by noon Thursday, September 3, 2020,                                          

To: Yadira Santiago – ysantiago2@mtsac.edu 

 

AGENDA 

Auxiliary Services Board of Directors Members: 

Morris Rodrigue , Chairperson  Doug Jenson (Staff) 

Audrey Yamagata-Noji    Suzanne Luetjen (Staff) 

Rosa Royce     Eddie Correa (Guest)  

Jenny Leung     Brandin Bowman (Guest) 

Associated Students Representative  Yadira Santiago (Notes) 

 

1. Call to Order. 

2. Public comment. 

3. Consideration of Approval of Minutes for June 4, 2020. 

4. Consideration of Approval of Pepsi Contract Amendment. 

5. Discussion – Review of Bylaws 

6. Discussion – Update on the Bookstore Advisory Committee and the Sodexo 
Advisory Committee. 
 

7. Reports: 
 Administrative Services 
 SacBookRac 
 Sodexo 

 

8. Adjourn 

 

Board approved future meeting dates: 

December 3, 2020 

March 4, 2021  June 3, 2021  September 2, 2021  December 2, 2021 

https://cccconfer.zoom.us/j/97382131788?pwd=UFgvMVR2Smd2TDlxVGpZQTdtcWtQdz09


MT. SAC AUXILIARY SERVICES CORPORATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MINUTES 

Thursday, June 4, 2020 

The fourth quarterly meeting of the Mt. SAC Auxiliary Services Corporation Board of 
Directors, held via zoom due to the Governors Safer at Home order, was called to order at 
2:05 p.m. on Thursday, June 4, 2020, by Morris Rodrigue, Chairperson.  Those present via 
zoom were: Morris Rodrigue, Audrey Yamagata-Noji, Jenny Leung, and Rosa Royce.  
Guest: Eddie Correa.  Staff: Doug Jenson, Suzanne Luetjen, Kevin Owen, and Yadira 
Santiago.  Absent: Amy Truong. 
 
2 – No public comment. 
 
3 – Consideration of Approval of Minutes for March 12, 2020 – It was moved by Rosa Royce, 
seconded by Morris Rodrigue, to approve the minutes of March 12, 2020.  Agenda date 
should read March 12, 2020, not March 5, 2020. 
 
Ayes: Rodrigue, Yamagata-Noji, Royce, Leung 
Absent: Truong 
 
4 – Consideration to accept the Election of Officers/Appointments –  In accordance with 
the Bylaws of the Board of Directors, composition will be the following 
officers/appointments elected to terms of one year or until successors are elected and 
qualified, effective July 1, 2020: 

Chairperson – Morris Rodrigue 

Vice Chairperson – Audrey Yamagata-Noji 

Secretary/Treasurer – Rosa Royce 

Faculty – Jenny Leung 

A.S. President – waiting on appointment of member from Associated 

Students 

It was moved by Rosa Royce to declare the presented officer elected/appointed members 
to the Board of Directors of the Mt. SAC Auxiliary Services Corporation.  The motion was 
seconded by Jenny Leung.  Morris would like to have a review of the Bylaws at the next 
scheduled meeting. 
 
Ayes: Rodrigue, Yamagata-Noji, Royce, Leung 
Absent: Truong 
 
5 – Consideration of Approval of Income Statement Report for the Third Quarter 2019-20 
and Auxiliary Statement of Revenues and Expenditures (Unaudited) YTD March 31, 2020 – 
It was moved by Audrey Yamagata-Noji, seconded by Morris Rodrigue, to approve the 
Income Statement Report for the Third Quarter 2019-20 and Auxiliary Statement of 
Revenues and Expenditures (Unaudited) YTD March 31, 2020. 
 
Ayes: Rodrigue, Yamagata-Noji, Royce, Leung 
Absent: Truong 



 
6 – Consideration of Approval of Personnel Transactions – It was moved by Rosa Royce, 
seconded by Jenny Leung, to approve the Personnel Transactions. 
 
Ayes: Rodrigue, Yamagata-Noji, Royce, Leung 
Absent: Truong 
 
7 – Consideration of Approval of the Annual Investment Policy Statement – It was moved 
by Rosa Royce, seconded by Audrey Yamagata-Noji, to approve the Annual Investment 
Policy Statement. 

Ayes: Rodrigue, Yamagata-Noji, Royce, Leung 
Absent: Truong 
 
8 – Consideration of Approval of the Annual Disclosure of Conflict Of Interest – It was moved 
by Rosa Royce, seconded by Audrey Yamagata-Noji, to approve the Annual Disclosure of 
Conflict Of Interest. 
 
Ayes: Rodrigue, Yamagata-Noji, Royce, Leung 
Absent: Truong 
 
9 – Consideration of Approval to Destroy Auxiliary Documents related to fiscal year 2014-
15 – It was moved by Rosa Royce, seconded by Morris Rodrigue, to approve to Destroy 
Auxiliary Documents related to fiscal year 2014-15. 

Ayes: Rodrigue, Yamagata-Noji, Royce, Leung 
Absent: Truong 
 
10 – Discussion update on the Bookstore Advisory Committee and the Sodexo Advisory 
Committee.  At this time there is no update due to the Covid-19 Pandemic/campus closure.  
This item will be kept on the Agenda for the next few meetings.  Kevin Owen, Director, 
Technical Services, and Brandin Bowman, Assistant Director, Technical Services, would 
like to serve on the Sodexo Advisory Committee. 

 Bookstore Advisory Committee – Audrey Yamagata-Noji will work with 
Suzanne Luetjen and Ann Del Muro of Barnes & Noble. 

 Sodexo Advisory Committee – Audrey Yamagata-Noji will work with Eddie 
Correa of Sodexo. 

 

11 – Reports: 

 Administrative Services – Morris Rodrigue 
 SacBookRac – Suzanne Luetjen 
 Sodexo – Eddie Correa 

12 – Adjournment – The meeting adjourned at 2:38 p.m. 



 

#60738-1 

AMENDMENT 

 

THIS AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) effective as of  August 4, 2020  (the “Effective Date”) 

is made between Bottling Group, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and its affiliates 

and/or respective subsidiaries collectively comprising of Pepsi Beverages Company with an office 

located at 4416 N. Azusa Canyon Road, Baldwin Park, CA 91706 (“Pepsi”) and Mt. San Antonio 

College Auxiliary Services, with its principal place of business at 1100 N. Grand Avenue, Walnut, 

CA 91789  (the “Customer”). 

 

WHEREAS, Pepsi and the Customer are parties to the Sponsorship Agreement commencing on 

July 1, 2020 (the “Agreement”); and  

 

WHEREAS, Customer has been temporarily closed or otherwise limited in their sale of the 

Products due to the Covid-19 pandemic; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and the covenants herein contained, it 

is hereby agreed that the Agreement is amended as follows. As used in this Amendment, 

capitalized terms defined in the Agreement and not otherwise defined in this Amendment shall 

have the respective meanings assigned thereto in the Agreement. 

 

1. Section 7 (A) Annual Sponsorship Fees. The Annual Sponsorship Fees for Year one of 

the Term (the applicable period July 1, 2020 – June 30, 2021) is hereby deleted in its 

entirety and replaced with the following:  

 

 Customer and Pepsi acknowledge and agree that the Annual Sponsorship Fees for Year 1 

for the applicable period, originally scheduled to be paid at Sixty Five Thousand US 

Dollars ($65,000), shall be revised to Thirty-Two Thousand Five Hundred US Dollars 

($32,500) payable to Customer within sixty (60) days after the signing of this Amendment 

by both parties. The Annual Sponsorship Fees are earned throughout the Year in which 

they are paid. In the event of early termination for any reason other than an uncured 

material breach by Pepsi pursuant to Section 10 herein, the unearned Annual Sponsorship 

Fees will be repaid to Pepsi pursuant to the terms of Section 10 herein. 

 

 In addition, to the above, Pepsi acknowledges and agrees to provide Customer with special 

rebates. Pepsi will calculate the total number of eligible Cases and Gallons purchased by 

Customer and its Food Service Provider throughout the applicable year (the “Special 

Rebates”). Pepsi shall calculate the total number of Cases and Gallons purchased and shall 

provide Customer with a special rebate of $5.38 on all Cases/Gallons (“units”) purchased 

in excess of 6,041 units during the applicable period. The Special Rebates shall be payable 

to Customer within sixty (60) days after June 30, 2021, up to an amount not to exceed 

Sixty-Five Thousand US Dollars ($65,500).  

 

2. Section 19. Force Majeure:  The Force Majeure language is hereby deleted in its entirety 

 and replaced with the following: 

 



 

#60738-1 

No party will be responsible to the other for any failure, in whole or in part, to perform any 

of its respective obligations hereunder, to the extent and for the length of time that 

performance is rendered impossible or commercially impracticable resulting directly or 

indirectly from any foreign or domestic embargo, product detention, seizure, act of God, 

pandemic, epidemic, insurrection, war and/or continuance of war, the passage or enactment 

of any law ordinance, regulation, ruling, or order interfering directly or indirectly with or 

rendering more burdensome the purchase, production, delivery or payment hereunder, 

including the lack of the usual means of transportation due to fire, flood, explosion, riot, 

strike or other acts of nature or man that are beyond the control of the parties unless such 

contingency is specifically excluded in another part of this Agreement (“Force Majeure 

Event”).  Any party(s) so affected, will (i) use all reasonable efforts to minimize the effects 

thereof and (ii) promptly notify the other party(s) in writing of the Force Majeure and the 

effect of the Force Majeure on such party’s ability to perform its obligations hereunder. 

The affected party(s) will promptly resume performance after it is no longer subject to 

Force Majeure. In the event that the Customer’s performance is temporarily suspended 

pursuant to a Force Majeure Event, Customer’s funding obligations will be suspended for 

the duration of Customer’s nonperformance.  Once the Customer resumes performance or 

in the event Customer is able to perform some, but not all of its obligations herein, any 

fixed, advanced, or guaranteed funding will be adjusted commensurate with the decline in 

volume associated with the suspended or partial performance.   

 

3. The support provided by Pepsi herein is conditioned upon Customer’s compliance with 

Pepsi’s payment terms and all performance requirements as set forth in the Original 

Agreement. Nothing herein shall be construed as any waiver from Pepsi’s standard 

policies, practices or terms as outlined in the Original Agreement. 

 

All other terms and conditions of the Original Agreement that are not amended by this Amendment 

shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Pepsi and Customer have caused this Amendment to be executed by 

the authorized persons set forth below.  

 

 

 Bottling Group, LLC   Mt. San Antonio College Auxiliary Services 

 

By ____________________________   By ____________________________   

Print name: _____________________  Print name: _____________________  

Title: __________________________   Title: __________________________ 

Date: __________________________   Date: __________________________  


















